
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, May 13, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Special Joint Meeting with the Economic Development Council 

 and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Covington Days Award (Slate) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  April 8, 2014 Special & Regular Meeting; April 22, 2014 Special Joint Meeting 

with Human Services Commission; and April 22, 2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Consultant Contract for Comprehensive Plan Update (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and Consider Planning Commission Recommendation on 2014 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment Docket (Hart) 
2. Discuss Draft 2015-2020 Transportation Improvement Program (Vondran) 
3. Presentation on Right-of-Way Design Elements (Vondran) 
4. Consider Revisions to Council Rules of Procedure and Adopt Subcommittees (Springer) 
5. 2014 First Quarter Financial Reports (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  May 13, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  APRIL 8, 2014 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; APRIL 22, 2014 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 
JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 
MINUTES; AND APRIL 22, 2014 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the April 8, 2014 City Council Special & 
Regular Meeting Minutes; April 22, 2014 City Council Special 
Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission Minutes; 
and April 22, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 102



Unapproved Draft – April 8, 2014 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
Special and Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 8, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS– 6:00-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Covington Planning Commission.  
Applicants interviewed included Jim Langehough and Mike Hanratty. 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, April 8, 
2014, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development 
Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation 
Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• King County Sheriff John Urquhart provided a report to the Council. 
• Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas accepted the April 25, 2014 Arbor Day 

Proclamation. 
• Building Official Robert Meyers accepted the May 2014 National Building Safety Month 

Proclamation. 
• City Engineer Bob Lindskov accepted the May 11-17, 2014 National Transportation 

Week Proclamation. 
• Public Works Director Don Vondran accepted the May 18-24, 2014 National Public 

Works Week Proclamation. 
• Aquatics Supervisor Rachel Bahl accepted the May 2014 National Aquatics Month 

Proclamation. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

2 of 102



Unapproved Draft – April 8, 2014 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 
David Aldous, works in Covington, expressed appreciation to Council for their support of 
parks and the importance of parks to the community. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  February 25, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes and March 11, 2014 

City Council Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (corrected). 
 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #30828-30895, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of 

$320,508.76, Dated March 18, 2014; Vouchers #30896-30896 in the Amount of 
$22,423.69, Dated March 25, 2014; Vouchers #30897-30897 and Voided Voucher #30864 
in the Amount of $1,051.97, Dated March 26, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1002221048-1002221060 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$157,865.66, Dated March 28, 2014. 

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda with correction to March 11, 2014 City Council Special & 
Regular meeting minutes.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Consider Appointment to Planning Commission. 
 
Councilmember Cimaomo recused himself and left the council chambers.  
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Jim Langehough to fill a replacement position on the Planning Commission for an 
applicant residing inside or outside Covington city limits (within three-mile radius) with a 
term expiring August 31, 2017.  Vote:  5-1 (Voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, Scott, Snoey, and 
Wagner; voting no:  Lanza).  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Leslie Hamada to fill adult open Position No. 1 on the Human Services 
Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2017.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Mayor Harto seconded to appoint 
Brian Lord to fill adult open Position No. 2 on the Human Services Commission with a 
term expiring March 31, 2017.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Fran McGregor to fill adult replacement Position No. 7 on the Human Services 
Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2016.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 

3 of 102



Unapproved Draft – April 8, 2014 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mayor Pro Tem 
Wagner seconded to appoint Adam Wheeler to fill youth open Position No. 4 on the Human 
Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2015.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Jared McMeen to fill youth open Position No. 5 on the Human Services 
Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2015.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Councilmember Cimaomo returned to the council chambers and rejoined the meeting. 
 
3.  Provide Direction re Commission Interview Process. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to make the following decisions: 

1) Who should conduct interviews?  Multiple fixed subcommittees of three or fewer 
councilmembers—each subcommittee assigned to a particular commission(s) and 
each councilmember assigned to at least one subcommittee.  Council would select 
the subcommittees each January and include an alternate councilmember on each 
subcommittee.  If an applicant wishes to be considered for more than one 
commission, the applicant would be required to interview separately for each. 

2) Should interviews be recorded and distributed to councilmembers once interviews 
for a particular commission are complete?  Yes, record the interviews. 

3) Should there be a requirement that councilmembers (who did not participate in 
interviews) listen to a recording of interviews for a particular commission prior to 
casting votes for members of that commission?  No, do not implement a 
requirement.  

4) Should there be a delay between the interview date and the vote date?  Maintain 
current practice of flexibility and allow sufficient time between interviews and 
appointments to allow all councilmembers time to listen to recordings. 

5) When should interviews occur?  Let staff decide. 
6) Should the exit interview process change to more closely match the {entrance} 

interview process?  Maintain current practice of a single exit interview 
subcommittee. 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Community Relations & Marketing Manager Karla Slate reminded Council of the Homeowner 
Association and Citizen Forum on April 29 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon announced she would be on vacation the last meeting of May and both 
June meetings. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

4 of 102



Unapproved Draft – April 8, 2014 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 102



Unapproved Draft – April 22, 2014 Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission Minutes 

Tuesday, April 22, 2014 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Human Services Commission was called to order in the 
City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
April 22, 2014, at 6:17 p.m., with Mayor Pro Tem Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Joe Cimaomo, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Joyce Bowling, Leslie Hamada, Brian Lord, Fran McGregor, Jared McMeen, Lesley Schlesinger, 
and Adam Wheeler. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst; and Sharon 
Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called the joint study session to order. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Human Services Funding Level. 
 
Human Services Commission Chair Fran McGregor gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Chair McGregor and 
commissioners provided responses.  Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm and 
City Manager Derek Matheson also provided further information and responses to Council 
questions. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to recommend a $10,000 increase to the 
original current Human Services budget and direct the Commission to put forth a decision 
card for the possibility of an additional $10,000 if it is available in the 2015 budget. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

6 of 102



Unapproved Draft–April 22, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 22, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, April 
22, 2014, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Pro Tem Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Joe Cimaomo, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Margaret Harto and Mark Lanza. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lanza who was at a family function and excuse Mayor Harto who 
was on bereavement.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; 
Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Angie Feser, Parks 
Planner; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; Ann Mueller, Senior 
Planner; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
amend the agenda to postpone New Business Item No. 5 to a future meeting to give the 
whole council a chance to participate.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  March 25, 2014 Special & Regular Meeting. 

7 of 102



Unapproved Draft–April 22, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 

 2 

 
C-2. Vouchers: #30898-30950, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of $83,517.32, Dated 

April 1, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002273227-1002273237 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1002273319-1002273319 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in 
the Amount of $155,793.12, Dated April 11, 2014.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DECLARING 
ONE VEHICLE AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE 
REPLACEMENT. 

 
C-3. Resolution to Authorize Surplus Vehicle. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the April 10 meeting. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Steven Pand reported on the April 16 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Sean Smith reported on the April 3 and April 17 meetings. 
 
Arts Commission – No report; April 10 meeting canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – No report; March 27 meeting canceled. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Testimony from the Public and Consider Extending Interim Zoning Regulations 
Ordinance Regarding Recreational Marijuana. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments asked questions, and Ms. Springer provided responses. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called for public comment for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public comment period for the 
public hearing. 
 
Councilmembers provided further comments and asked further questions, and Ms. Springer 
provided responses. 
 
 

8 of 102



Unapproved Draft–April 22, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 

 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 06-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE 
No. 10-13 TO EXTEND THE INTERIM ZONING 
REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 
PRODUCTION, PROCESSING, AND RETAIL USES FOR AN 
ADDITIONAL SIX MONTHS; AMEND THE MEASUREMENT 
METHOD FOR THE SENSITIVE USES BUFFER; PROVIDING 
FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE EXTENSION; ADOPTING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 06-14 extending the interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana production, processing, and retail uses for an additional six months.  Vote:  3-2 
(voting yes:  Mhoon, Snoey, and Wagner; voting no:  Cimaomo and Scott).  Motion passed.  
Ordinance failed. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart provided additional information. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
reconsider the previous vote:  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 06-14 extending the interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana production, processing, and retail uses for an additional six months.  Vote:  5-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Present Park Impact Fee Study. 
 
Parks Planner Angie Feser introduced Randy Young from Henderson, Young & Company who 
then gave the presentation on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Young provided responses. 
 
Principal Planner Salina Lyons and Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas both provided 
additional information and responses to councilmembers.  
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to agree with the Parks & Recreation 
Commission recommendations regarding:  1) calculating Park Impact Fee rates for non-
residential development; 2) count homeowner association private parks as helping meet the 
standards for neighborhood parks; and 3) Park Impact Fees should be based on the 
current actual levels of services. 
 

9 of 102



Unapproved Draft–April 22, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 13, 2014 
 
 

 4 

3.  Discuss Parks Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
Parks Planner Angie Feser gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
adopt the 2015-2020 Parks Capital Improvement Program.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consider Ordinance re Proposed Changes in Downtown Design Façade Standards. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmember provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 07-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON DOWNTOWN DESIGN GUIDELINES 
AND STANDARDS.  (AMENDING ORD. NO. 10-10) 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 07-14 relating to amendments to the Covington Downtown Design 
Guidelines and Standards.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Report on Right-of-Way Design Standards.  (Postponed.) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Bob Lindskov, resident of Maple Valley Ridge, informed Council that he heard from 
neighbors that residents are taking their kids from Maple Valley parks and sending them to 
Covington Community Park. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 102



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 13, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #30951-31006, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of 
$133,668.41, Dated April 15, 2014; Vouchers #31007-31055, Including ACH Payments in the 
Amount of $323,792.93, Dated May 1, 2014; Vouchers #31056-31056 in the Amount of 
$10,441.75, Dated May 2, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002326787-1002326799 and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002326849-1002326849 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $158,203.80, Dated April 25, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #30951-31006, Including ACH 
Payments in the Amount of $133,668.41, Dated April 15, 2014; Vouchers 
#31007-31055, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of $323,792.93, 
Dated May 1, 2014; Vouchers #31056-31056 in the Amount of $10,441.75, 
Dated May 2, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002326787-
1002326799 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002326849-1002326849 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $158,203.80, 
Dated April 25, 2014. 
  
. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

11 of 102



12 of 102



13 of 102



14 of 102



15 of 102



16 of 102



17 of 102



18 of 102



19 of 102



20 of 102



21 of 102



22 of 102



23 of 102



24 of 102



25 of 102



26 of 102



27 of 102



28 of 102



29 of 102



30 of 102



31 of 102



32 of 102



33 of 102



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 13, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF CONSULTANT CONTRACT AND SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR 

2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY 
MANAGER TO SIGN SAID CONTRACT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
                                           
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Consultant Contract for Services with Exhibit A-Scope of Services  
 
PREPARED BY:        Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

Ann Mueller, Senior Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
 In March 2014, city staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) from consultants to prepare the 
city’s 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update as required by the state’s Growth Management Act 
(GMA).  The GMA requires the update to be completed by June 30, 2015, after receiving review 
by both the State Department of Commerce and the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC).  The 
city received three proposals and interviewed all three respondents on April 21, 2014.  The staff 
selected Studio Cascade, Inc. of Spokane, Washington, as the best firm to meet Covington’s 
Comprehensive Plan Update needs.  Their multi-disciplinary team also includes ECONorthwest, 
an economic consulting firm currently assisting the city with the Town Center Study; AHBL, a 
Planning & Engineering firm that completed our Downtown Plan in 2009 and Shoreline Master 
Program in 2011; and Fehr & Peers, a transportation planning and traffic engineering firm very 
familiar with the regional transportation issues of SE King County. 
 
As part of the 2014 city budget the city council approved a decision card in the amount of 
$120,000 to hire a consultant to assist the city staff in preparation of our required Comprehensive 
Plan Update.  Attached is the proposed city’s contract for services in the amount of $120,000 
with Studio Cascade with a detailed scope of services attached as Exhibit A that outlines the 
work to be performed between now and June 30, 2015. 
 
City staff is requesting approval for the city manager to execute the contract with Studio 
Cascade, Inc. in a form substantially the same as that provided in the attachment.             
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Return the contract and scope of services to the city staff for revisions as directed by the council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Fiscal impact involves the $120,000 set aside in the 2014 city budget through a decision card 
approved the city council.  In addition, the senior planner and community development director 
will provide staff time managing the contract as part of their normal work duties during 2014 and 
the first half of 2015.   

34 of 102



 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution      X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to approve the consultant contract and associated scope of services 
with Studio Cascade, Inc. to complete the 2015 GMA required 
Comprehensive Plan Update and authorize the city manager to sign such 
contract is substantially the same form as attached.    
 

REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Manager; City Attorney. 

35 of 102



 
 Page 1 of 2 

Contract No. __________ 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES  

 
 This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Covington, Washington (the “City"), 
and       Studio Cascade, Inc                                    , (the “Consultant”), whose principal office is 
located at    429 E. Sprague Avenue, Spokane, WA 99202 _____________.  
 WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain services performed for its citizens 
but does not have the manpower or expertise to perform such services; and  
 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; now, therefore,  
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 1. Scope and Schedule of Services to be Performed by Consultant.  The Consultant shall 
perform those services described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth.  In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all times comply 
with all Federal, State, and local statutes, rules and ordinances applicable to the performance of such 
services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith.  The Consultant shall request and 
obtain prior written approval from the City if the scope or schedule is to be modified in any way. 
 2. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The City shall pay the Consultant for services 
rendered upon receipt of invoices received from the Consultant.  The total amount to be paid shall not 
exceed $ $120,000   at the rates shown in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.  
 3. Consultant Budget.  The Consultant shall apply the funds received under this Agreement 
within the maximum limits set forth in this Agreement.  The Consultant shall request prior approval 
from the City whenever the Consultant desires to amend its budget in any way. 
 4. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing Monday, May 19, 2014 and ending Friday, July 31, 2015 unless sooner terminated under 
the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 5. Independent Consultant.  Consultant and City agree that Consultant is an independent 
Consultant with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the parties 
hereto.  Neither Consultant nor any employee of Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded 
City employees by virtue of the services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be 
responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or 
contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or otherwise assuming the duties of an 
employer with respect to the Consultant, or any employee of the Consultant. 
 6. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 
officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including 
attorney's fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property by the negligent act, 
omission or failure of the Consultant, its officers, agents and employees, in performing the work 
required by this Agreement.  With respect to the performance of this Agreement and as to claims 
against the City, its officers, agents and employees, the Consultant expressly waives its immunity 
under Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to its 
employees, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided for in this 
paragraph extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of the Consultant.  This 
waiver is mutually negotiated by the parties.  This paragraph shall not apply to any damage resulting 
from the sole negligence of the City, its agents and employees.  To the extent any of the damages 
referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its 
agents or employees, this obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless is valid and enforceable 
only to the extent of the negligence of the Consultant, its officers, agents, and employees. 
 7. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
  A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 

ATTACHMENT 1

36 of 102



 
 Page 2 of 2 

of any nature expended and services performed in the performance of this Agreement and other such 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. 
  B. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW 
Chapter 40.14 and by the City. 
 8. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by 
this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review or audit by law during the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 9. Termination.  This Agreement may at any time be terminated by the City giving to the 
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of the City's intention to terminate the same.  Failure to 
provide products on schedule may result in contract termination.  If the Consultant's insurance 
coverage is canceled for any reason, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately. 
 10. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant to be provided under 
this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 
 11. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of 
the services contemplated by this Agreement without the written consent of the City. 
 12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties 
hereto and no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, 
shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Either party may request changes in the 
agreement.  Proposed changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written 
amendments to this Agreement. 
 13. Notices.  Notices to the City of Covington shall be sent to the following address: 
   City Clerk, City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st St, Suite 100 
   Covington, Washington 98042 
  Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the address provided by the Consultant upon the 
signature line below. 
 14. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or 
other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand 
and agree that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorney's fees and costs of suit. 
 DATED this                           day of                                                             , 20              . 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONSULTANT:  
 
By:  By:  
Title:     
  Title:  
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
  Printed Name:   
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk  Address:  
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    
Office of the City Attorney 
  Date approved by City Council:   
By: ________________________________  (If Applicable) 

37 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

1 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget 
Scope of Work 

Step 1 – Baseline 

Reviewing the City's adopted policy, understanding the various projects that influence the plan, understanding 
what's happened over the last 10 years, and listening to community stakeholders make up this first part of the 
work.  

1.1 Engagement program 

The Consultant will design a public engagement program, setting the project's schedule and identifying 
specific public outreach and engagement activities. Upon Client approval, Consultant will post it available on 
line to help the public track project progress.  

The City will create and maintain a project web page for inclusion in the City's website. Consultant will 
provide material for web posting and consult with the City on the most effective web strategy throughout the 
process.  

Consultant will also develop and refresh a “booth in a box” to facilitate City staff and community leaders 
involvement in the outreach process, too. Staff, planning commissioners and City Council members will be 
able to check-out, assemble and run these venues, presenting at local events, fairs, or civic organization 
meetings. The Consultant will assemble information posters, flyers, and a variety of on-site exercises that 
inform, entertain, elicit and motivate. 

Deliverables: 

Project logo and branding 
Outreach schedule and protocols 
Kickoff meeting 
Preliminary project schedule, with deliverable deadlines 
Preliminary data request form 

1.2 Stakeholder interviews 

Consultant will interview stakeholders one-on-one or in small groups over the course of two or three days in 
Covington, with stakeholders identified by the City and scheduled by the City. These stakeholders may 
include representatives from Planning Commission, City Council, City departments and/or other agencies 
and public services providers. 

Deliverables: 

Up to three days of interviews as scheduled by City staff 
Summary of interview findings 

  

38 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

2 

1.3 Policy assessment & checklists 

Consultant will review the City's adopted plans and policies, programmed capital projects and other official 
actions that will influence the course of this project. The City’s comprehensive plan, budget forecasts, zoning, 
master plans, parks plan, permit review processes, planned street improvements, interlocal agreements, and 
street design standards will all play a part in the project's design and execution. Consultant will also review 
fiscal and budget policies, service and staffing levels, and adequacy and reliability of revenues. Consultant will 
review the existing comprehensive plan against the Department of Commerce's GMA update checklist, 
identifying those elements that require modification as part of this process. And Consultant will begin work 
on the SEPA checklist to ensure that the envisioned environmental documentation informs and responds to 
planning alternatives. This work will include an assessment of infrastructure capacity to serve the urban 
growth area, as based on existing capital facilities plans and utility system master plans. It will also include 
initial demographic and economic assessments to ascertain existing conditions and to help forecast future 
conditions. Consultant will not attempt to duplicate PSRC or King County population forecasting but will 
review those forecasts for appropriateness to Covington’s planning environment. Consultant will also 
perform a high-level review of the transportation network and existing transportation modeling, identifying 
issues for addressing in this plan update. 

Deliverables: 

Completed Commerce GMA update checklist 
Completed preliminary SEPA checklist and appropriate SEPA notification 
Policy assessment and existing conditions technical memorandum 

1.4 Vision workshop 

Since the community is generally satisfied with its vision, Consultant will present it to the community in a 
workshop to make sure it's still on target, relevant and a solid footing upon which to build the rest of the plan. 

Deliverables: 

Vision workshop (Workshop 1) 

Step 2 – Alternatives 

Step 2 focuses on potential ways forward. This process will be both fun and challenging, with the Consultant, 
City staff, and the community advancing proposals and digesting them, addressing various issues, identifying 
opportunities and consolidating initial strategic thought. This interaction will ensure the planning process 
stays on track, and it will set up the community for participation through the plan's adoption and 
implementation. 

2.1 Storefront Studio 

Consultant will design and run a multi-day storefront studio event, inviting the community to contribute 
directly to the evolution of planning concepts. This storefront studio will call together the consultant team for 
an extended visit, inviting community members to participate at their own comfort levels. Evening 
workshops build on and review work done during the daytime studio sessions and focus groups.  

The first day in Covington's storefront studio will feature a scenario open house, with exercises to explore 
thematic scenarios and collect community insight into what might and what might not work. An evening 
session will follow, narrowing the scope of initial alternatives. This conversation will bring forward a 
framework relating the vision to potential land use scenarios. 

39 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

3 

The second day will concentrate on refining the working vision in response to community feedback, with a 
daytime walking audit/field tour with the Planning Commission. The third studio day will refine concepts, 
with a public workshop that evening to consult with the community and test the Consultant’s thinking. 

The storefront studio can be held in a small space and given over entirely to the event. Participants can come 
and go during the days and evenings, speaking directly with team members.  

Deliverables: 

Multi-day Storefront Studio engagement 
Evening workshops (Workshops 2 and 3) 

2.2 Alternatives refinement 

The interactive design process will continue, with a public workshop to present, vet and refine the draft 
vision and plan frameworks. The final framework will emerge from this comprehensive public process, 
endorsed by the community members who will have shaped it and who will use it. Consultant will take the 
workshop results and refine a preferred alternative, presenting comments to the community via the City 
website, local press and direct e-mail notification. This work will examine infrastructure, land use, 
transportation, and housing needs, too, outlining the policy environment the vision will require for its 
achievement. It will also consider strategy, identifying short and mid-range actions the community can take to 
make the vision real. 

Deliverables: 

First-generation preferred planning framework (policy and spatial) 
Public workshop (Workshop 4) 

2.3 Preferred direction workshop 

Consultant will formalize the policy and spatial framework and present it to the community in a public 
workshop. Community members will evaluate preliminary policy adjustments and spatial planning changes, 
identifying the best fit and making recommendations on how to assemble the draft plan. 

Deliverables: 

Second-generation preferred planning framework (policy and spatial) 
Public workshop (Workshop 5) 
Preliminary implementation matrix 

 
  

40 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

4 

Step 3 – Draft plan 

In this step Consultant will work with City staff and the community to refine the preferred vision, update the 
comprehensive plan, and craft an overall implementation strategy. The preferred plan will guide decision-
making and be designed and formatted as an active, accessible document. 

3.1 Preferred alternative 

The preferred alternative will present the Consultant’s interpretation of the process, consolidating feedback 
received in the studio, from the community, by City staff and through the Planning Commission. Consultant 
will produce a consolidated policy and spatial framework based on the results of Task 2.3's workshop for City 
review and comment. This policy framework will include all comprehensive plan elements, presented as a 
cross-referenced table to validate overall plan direction and test internal consistency. 

Deliverables: 

Third-generation preferred planning framework (policy and spatial) 
Implementation matrix 

3.2 Preliminary draft plan 

This project's full success lies in the policy framework and strategy with which it will be implemented. 
Consultant will propose a phased approach, prioritizing actions, identifying potential partners, estimating 
necessary resources – all geared to leveraging public support for the plan. This task will deliver a consolidated, 
full version draft of the plan, incorporating all required GMA elements within a structure that fulfills the 
City's objectives. It will be a first-blush look at the plan, how it's put together and how it integrates GMA and 
SEPA requirements. Consultant will present this "screencheck" draft to staff to take to the Planning 
Commission, ensuring that planning proposals are consistent with community recommendations. The 
screencheck draft plan will be produced in either Word or InDesign, whichever most easily facilitates 
production and review at this stage. 

Deliverables: 

Screencheck draft plan 

3.3 Open house/workshop 

After staff has reviewed the screencheck draft, Consultant will conduct a community open house/ workshop 
to present the draft plan, soliciting community thought on the proposed vision, plan and implementation 
strategy. Results from this event will be the basis for a joint work session with the Planning Commission and 
City Council. 

Deliverables: 

Public workshop (Workshop 6) 
  

41 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

5 

3.4 PC/CC joint work session 

The Planning Commission and the City Council will need to align for plan adoption and implementation, and 
this joint work session - perhaps programmed over several hours – will help identify and resolve any points of 
conflict. The work session will cut to the core of the issues, asking decision-makers to wrestle with the 
challenges, understand the nuance and collaborate to find solutions. 

Deliverables: 

Joint PC/CC work session, with presentations and workshop material as appropriate 
 

Step 4 – Making commitments 

This step will focus on producing a final, realistic plan - one that looks great and will find effective use in 
everyday life. 

4.1 Draft plan & draft EIS addendum 

The draft plan will propose an overall vision and policy framework - all in compliance with GMA and SEPA 
requirements and responding to direction obtained in preceding tasks. The plan will also include an 
implementation strategy expressed in a plan graphic, explaining relative priorities of individual components 
and identifying partners. Consultant intends to integrate environmental documentation as appropriate in the 
plan, as well. This will take the form of a dedicated environmental element that articulates SEPA 
requirements and how this new process fulfills them. Consultant anticipates that this will involve an 
addendum to the existing comprehensive plan EIS, but it may need to pursue a different course depending on 
the planning alternatives developed in the process. This task will culminate with the official publishing of the 
integrated comprehensive plan/EIS addendum for public comment, with a transmittal to both Commerce 
and PSRC for initial review. The draft plan and EIS will be produced in InDesign to ensure an attractive 
appearance, comprehensive content management, graphical integration and consistent translation to website 
display. 

Deliverables: 

Draft comprehensive plan and EIS addendum 
Four hours InDesign staff training provided by Consultant 
Initial PSRC and Commerce circulation for review 
Notice of EIS addendum, as appropriate 

4.2 Development code audit 

Consultant will compare the updated comprehensive plan's policies with the City's adopted development 
regulations, identifying those areas where the codes will need changing to comply with planning direction. 
Consultant will produce a technical memo to that effect, outlining possible options for making the 
adjustments and prioritizing code amendments by overall importance. 

Deliverables: 

Development code audit technical memo 
  

42 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

6 

4.3 Implementation matrix 

Consultant will prepare a summary implementation matrix, identifying project elements, timing, responsible 
parties, likely partners and potential costs and funding sources. This – and the plan graphic – will be the quick 
guide to what the vision and plan promise. 

Deliverables: 

Final implementation matrix 

4.4 PC work session 

Consultant will conduct a work session for the Planning Commission, digging into the details of the plan and 
making sure that what's included in the plan, as well as in the code audit and implementation matrix, are 
consistent with the community's intent and in line with the community's capabilities. 

Deliverables: 

Planning Commission work session 

4.5 Rollout & Commerce review 

Consultant will produce and "roll out" a final draft plan, formalizing requests for PSRC and Commerce 
review and setting the plan up for public hearings through the Planning Commission and City Council. 

Deliverables: 

Final draft comprehensive plan and EIS addendum 
 

Step 5 – Adoption 

This step in the process focuses on plan adoption and production of the final document. It assumes two 
meetings/hearings before both the Planning Commission and the City Council and revisions to the plan as 
necessary to conform to City direction. Additional hearings or more extensive plan revisions may require 
increased City staff participation to ensure the project's budget is maintained. 

5.1 PC public hearings 

Consultant will present the plan at two Planning Commission public meeting/hearings, answering questions 
and facilitating commission recommendations. 

Deliverables: 

Two (2) Planning Commission public meetings/hearings 

5.2 CC public hearings 

Consultant will present the plan at two City Council public meetings/hearings, answering questions as 
appropriate and assisting with Council agreement and final adoption. 

Deliverables: 

Two (2) City Council public meetingshearings 

43 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

7 

5.3 Final plan & EIS addendum 

Consultant will make one final plan revision to incorporate recommendations from the Planning Commission 
and changes as requested by the City Council, delivering the document as a PDF for City reproduction and 
distribution, as well as a native file in InDesign format for the City’s future use and amendment. 

Deliverables: 

Final comprehensive plan and EIS addendum 
  

44 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

8 

Schedule 

The following schedule is reproduced from the project proposal and presumes a May 2014 start, identifying 
deliverables for each task and an approximate time scale. 

 

 
  

45 of 102



 

Draft 5/5/2014  

Pa
ge

9 

Budget 

The following budget is reproduced from the one included in the proposal, except that reimbursable expenses 
are reduced by $236 to match the maximum budget of $120,000. 

 

Task 
 G

rim
es

 

H
as

tin
gs

 

B
at

es
 

Sh
oo

k 

C
ar

ls
on

 

G
rig

no
n 

B
re

ila
nd

 

Sa
m

da
hl

 

Total 
 

Task 1.1: Engagement program 4 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,100 

Task 1.2: Stakeholder interviews 12 12 0 4 0 0 4 0 4,620 

Task 1.3: Policy assessment/checklist 8 0 24 16 4 16 12 4 12,580 

Task 1.4: Vision workshop (wkshp 1) 8 8 4 0 0 0 8 2 4,470 

Task 2.1: Storefront studio (wkshp 2&3) 24 16 8 8 0 0 8 2 9,610 

Task 2.2: Alternatives refinement 8 20 16 12 8 8 8 0 11,360 

Task 2.3: Preferred direction (wkshp 4) 8 12 6 0 0 0 4 0 4,150 

Task 3.1: Preferred alternative 8 12 8 4 4 8 2 0 6,650 

Task 3.2: Draft plan 4 32 40 4 12 24 12 0 18,260 

Task 3.3: Open house/workshop 5 8 8 0 0 0 0 4 0 2,900 

Task 3.4: PC/CC joint workshop 8 4 0 12 0 0 4 0 4,140 

Task 4.1: Final draft plan & draft SEIS 8 12 12 8 0 0 4 0 6,020 

Task 4.2: Development code audit 2 0 30 0 8 0 4 0 6,070 

Task 4.3: Implementation matrix 4 12 4 2 0 0 4 0 3,610 

Task 4.4: PC work session 8 4 0 0 0 0 2 0 2,050 

Task 4.5: Rollout & Commerce review 8 4 8 0 0 0 0 0 2,700 

Task 5.1: PC hearings 8 4 4 0 0 0 4 0 2,900 

Task 5.2: CC hearings 8 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 2,200 

Task 5.3: Final plan 12 24 16 4 0 0 4 0 8,120 

Fee Total 158 200 184 74 36 56 88 8 114,510 

Expenses         5,490 

Total         120,000 

 

 

46 of 102



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 13, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  SETTING THE DOCKET FOR THE 2014 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AMENDMENT REVIEW PROCESS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Planning Commission  
                                           
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. CPA 01-14: Park & Recreation Department application to amend the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan  

 
PREPARED BY:        Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

Ann Mueller, Senior Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
The city received one application to amend the Comprehensive Plan by the deadline to submit an 
application for the 2014 docket cycle. The Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA) application, 
CPA 01-14 (see attachment 1), was submitted by the city’s Parks & Recreation Department staff 
to amend the Parks and Recreation Element and the Capital Facilities Plan Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. In general, it is expected that the Park and Recreation Element will be 
updated with a new Parks Capital Improvement Project list for 2015-2020 and a revised Level of 
Service. The Capital Facilities Plan Element will be updated with a new parks, open space and 
facilities inventory. 

 
CPA 01-14.   A proposal to amend information in the Parks and Recreation Element and 
Capital Facilities Plan Element with information from the Parks Capital Facilities Plan 
that is currently being updated.  The specific details (track change version of the 
amendments) were not provided by Park and Recreation staff at the time of application. If 
this amendment is accepted for the 2014 Docket review, a full track change of the 
proposed updates to these to two elements and a SEPA checklist will be submitted by 
May 14, 2014.  

 
The planning commission held a public hearing on April 17, 2014, to discuss the inclusion of the 
Parks & Recreation CPA proposal in the final 2014 Docket. No public comments were received 
at the planning commission’s public hearing or in writing by staff.   After a presentation by Park 
& Recreation staff at the April 17, 2014, meeting on the reason for the proposed amendments, 
the planning commission voted unanimously to recommend that the city council include 
application CPA 01-14 on the 2014 Final Docket for further staff and planning commission 
review and consideration.  
 
Tonight, the city council’s action is to officially act on the recommendations of the planning 
commission and set the final 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket.  This council 
decision is only to approve the final Docket of CPA amendments and not to formally debate the 
merits of the proposed amendments. This is not the final decision point for adoption of any of the 
proposed amendments. 

47 of 102



 
After the council adopts the final 2014 Docket, the planning commission and city staff will study 
and review the final Docket request and hold a formal public hearing on the proposed 
amendments on June 19, 2014. The planning commission will then provide a final 
recommendation on the proposed amendments to council in September.  Per CMC 14.25, the city 
council must then hold a public hearing and make a final decision of which amendments to adopt 
by ordinance prior to December 31, 2014.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
The council has a choice to docket all or none of the items recommended by the planning 
commission.  If the council agrees to remove the proposed amendment submitted by the Parks 
and Recreation Department from the planning commission’s proposed 2014 Docket, pursuant to 
CMC 14.25.050, the council must hold a public hearing regarding such proposed additions or 
removals. A public hearing for this purpose could be held in early June and would be subject to 
the regular legal noticing requirements for such public hearings 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Although the docketed items have no direct monetary costs, there are ancillary costs associated 
with staff time and materials, such as final cost of implementation and printing of updates to the 
Comprehensive Plan binders.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution      X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to set the official 2014 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket as 
recommended by the Planning Commission to include the Park & Recreation 
Department  Comprehensive Plan Amendment: CPA 01-14.   
 

REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Manager; City Attorney. 

48 of 102



ATTACHMENT 1

49 of 102



50 of 102



51 of 102



52 of 102



53 of 102



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 13, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  PRESENT DRAFT SIX-YEAR (2015 – 2020) TRANSPORTATION 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. 2015-2020 TIP Summary Spreadsheet 
2. 2015-2020 TIP Map 
3. 2015-2020 TIP Project Descriptions 
4. Town Center Infrastructure Map 
5. Project Ranking Spreadsheet 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2015 – 2020 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
The draft 2015-2020 TIP addresses projects that were in last year’s TIP.  There are several items 
that need to be addressed before finalizing the 2015-2020 TIP.  These items are as follows: 
 

1. Hawk Subarea Plan Spine Road / 204th Avenue SE – To improve transportation mobility 
in the area with a new arterial connection between SR 18 and 204th Avenue SE through 
the subarea and the connection to SE 272nd Street. 
 

2. Town Center Infrastructure Roads – Necessary infrastructure to support Town Center 
development.   

 
3. Pedestrian Safety and Mobility Projects – Small capital projects that address pedestrian 

safety and mobility. 
 
In addition, we are developing a transportation improvement project ranking spreadsheet.  
Evaluation criteria will allow prioritization of projects based on concurrency needs, level of 
service, safety, and non-motorized circulation.  We are contemplating additional ranking criteria 
to quantify and prioritize other benefits.  In addition, we are in the beginning stages of a 
Comprehensive Plan update that will be updating our Transportation and Capital Facilities 
Elements which will help in determining needs and priorities. 

54 of 102



 
Staff wanted to bring a draft 2015 – 2020 TIP and present it to Council in order to discuss the 
direction that we should be pursuing.  All of this information is beneficial in evaluating and 
prioritizing projects in the TIP because we need to balance the needs from a capacity, safety and 
economic perspective. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct staff to modify the draft 2015 – 2020 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2015 – 2020.  
The specific revenue source(s) for the city portion of the funds for each project is determined 
each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  
Possible sources are grants, appropriations and traffic impact fees. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion      X   Other 
 

Provide input to staff. 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

55 of 102



56 of 102



57 of 102



58 of 102



59 of 102



60 of 102



61 of 102



62 of 102



63 of 102



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 13, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION ON AESTHETIC DESIGN ELEMENTS WITHIN THE RIGHT 

OF WAY 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Attached PowerPoint to be presented at the evening meeting. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On December 10, 2013, Councilmember Lanza gave a presentation on concerns regarding 
aesthetic design elements within the right of way (ROW).  These included types of streetlights, 
stamped concrete, signal poles, sign posts and signs.  Staff has done some research to get an idea 
on installation and maintenance costs associated with some of the different types and styles of 
elements that were discussed.  Staff will present the results of that research and will request if 
any additional information is needed by Council and how they would like to proceed. 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Presentation only  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:   
 

PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

64 of 102



1

Goals

 Picture “tour” of Covington Picture tour” of Covington

 Costs associated with design elements

 Council direction to proceed with changes Council direction to proceed with changes

ATTACHMENT 1

65 of 102



2

Streetlights

Streetlights

66 of 102



3

Streetlights

Streetlights

67 of 102



4

Streetlights

Streetlights
Maple Valley Covington

68 of 102



5

SR 516 Streetlights
Maple Valley Covington

SR 516 Streetlights

69 of 102



6

Sign Posts

Sign Posts

70 of 102



7

Sign Posts

Sign Posts
Maple Valley Covington

71 of 102



8

Crosswalk Signing
Maple Valley Covington

Roundabout Truck Apron

72 of 102



9

Roundabout Truck Apron

Roundabout Truck Apron

73 of 102



10

Roundabout Truck Apron

Roundabout Truck Apron

Maple Valley Covington

74 of 102



11

Fencing

Fencing

75 of 102



12

Fencing
Maple Valley Covington

Benches and Litter Receptacles
Maple Valley Covington

76 of 102



13

Cost Comparison

Design Element
Installation Costs 

Covington Standard Maple Valley Standardg p y

Streetlight $        3,500.00 $       16,500.00 

Sign Post $           100.00 $          3,500.00 

Truck Apron $     10,600.00 $       22,750.00 

Fencing (per foot) $              25.00 $                60.00 

Benches & Litter Receptacles $        2,700.00 $          2,700.00 

Streetlight Comparison

168th Place SE Project

• 57 Green Luminaires installed

• Installation cost - ~$199,500

• Maple Valley Streetlight

• Installation cost - ~$940,500

• Maintenance cost 
increase - ~$7 500 annuallyincrease $7,500 annually

77 of 102



14

Example Project
Length: ½ Mile
Type: Collector Arterial
Features: 1 Roundabout, 1000’ of fencing

Design Element
Installation Costs 

Covington Standard Maple Valley Standard

Streetlights (25) $        87,500.00 $    412,500.00 

Sign Post (4) $      400.00 $      14,000.00 

Truck Apron $   10,600.00 $  22,750.00 

Fencing $        25,000.00 $          60,000.00 

Total $      123,500.00 $    509,250.00 

Council/Policy Direction

 Upon completion of the “tour“ and Upon completion of the tour  and 
reviewing of the costs, should Staff 
move forward with changes to any 
design elements in light of significant 
costs involved?

78 of 102



Agenda Item 4   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 13, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE TO 

ADOPT A NEW COMMISSIONER INTERVIEW PROCESS AND APPOINT 
SUBCOMMITTEES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. April 8, 2014, Blue Sheet for Discussion of Commissioner Interview Procedures 
2. Proposed Resolution Amending the Covington City Council’s Rules of Procedures to 

Adopt a New Commissioner Interview Process 
 
PREPARED BY:   Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the regular council meeting on March 25, 2014, the council discussed whether they should 
adopt new procedures for conducting commissioner applicant interviews. No decision was made 
at that meeting, however the council moved to direct staff to bring back procedural options for 
conducting commissioner applicant interviews in closed interview panels of three or fewer 
councilmembers.  
 
At the April 8, 2014, regular council meeting, the council re-engaged discussion on the matter 
and considered the commissioner applicant interview procedural options presented by staff 
(Attachment 1). The council reached a consensus to direct staff to bring back proposed 
amendments to the City Council’s Rules of Procedure to conform to the following revised 
commissioner applicant interview process: 
 

• Create an applicant interview subcommittee for each commission, comprised of three or 
fewer councilmembers for each subcommittee. Each councilmember shall be appointed 
to at least one subcommittee. 
 

• Councilmember appointments to the interview subcommittees shall occur annually in 
January (with no restrictions on appointments from year to year).  
 

• Commission interviews held by the subcommittee shall be scheduled by the city clerk at a 
time and date that best meets the scheduling needs of that subcommittee.  
 

• Interviews should be recorded and distributed to all councilmembers once interviews by 
that subcommittee are complete (with no explicit requirement for councilmembers to 
listen to the recorded interviews).  
 

• The city clerk should endeavor to provide a sufficient amount of time for 
councilmembers to review the applicable subcommittee interviews before the discussion 
and appointment of commissioners is conducted at a regular council meeting. 
 

79 of 102



• The council will retain the separate commissioner exit interview subcommittee. 
 

• The full council will continue to discuss and vote to appoint commissioners at a regularly 
scheduled council meeting. 

 
 The attached resolution (Attachment 2) contains the proposed amendments to Section 5. CITY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES, paragraph “B”, of the Covington City Council Rules of Procedure 
to adopt the revised process as outlined above. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Discussed April 8, 2014, and included in the Blue Sheet attached as 
Attachment 1.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution     X   Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt a resolution amending the Covington City Council Rules of 
Procedure to adopt a new commissioner interview process. 
 
Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers ________________, _______________ and 
_________________ to the Arts Commission Interview Subcommittee. 
 
Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers ________________, _______________ and 
_________________ to the Human Services Commission Interview 
Subcommittee. 
 
Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers ________________, _______________ and 
_________________ to the Covington Economic Development Council (CEDC) 
Interview Subcommittee. 
 
Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers ________________, _______________ and 
_________________ to the Planning Commission Interview Subcommittee. 
 
Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmembers ________________, _______________ and 
_________________ to the Parks and Recreation Commission Interview 
Subcommittee. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; City Clerk 

80 of 102



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: April 8, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  COMMISSIONER INTERVIEW PROCESS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
PREPARED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The city council discussed the commissioner interview process at their regular meeting on March 
25.  Staff presented four options to improve the process and the council directed staff to return 
with sub-options to implement Option 4, “avoid a quorum and public noticing requirements by 
interviewing commission applicants in smaller groups of three or fewer councilmembers.” 
 
Staff is seeking high-level input from the council to help staff refine the possible sub-options and 
prepare an amendment to the City Council Rules of Procedure for future council review.  Below 
are questions, options, and legal / procedural considerations to guide the council’s discussion.  
Staff assumes the full council will continue to discuss and vote to appoint commissioners at 
regularly-scheduled council meetings. 
 

Question Options Legal / Procedural 
Considerations 

Who should conduct 
interviews? 

1. A fixed subcommittee of 
three or fewer 
councilmembers. 

2. Multiple fixed 
subcommittees of three or 
fewer councilmembers -- 
each subcommittee 
assigned to a particular 
commission(s) and each 
councilmember assigned 
to at least one 
subcommittee. 

3. A rolling subcommittee of 
three or fewer council 
members (i.e. a different 
group of councilmembers 
each time interviews are 
necessary). 

As long as there is not a 
quorum of councilmembers 
present, and those 
councilmembers are not 
making decisions or taking 
action on behalf of the whole 
council, these subcommittee 
interviews would not be 
subject to the Open Public 
Meetings Act (OPMA).  

ATTACHMENT 1

81 of 102



Question Options Legal / Procedural 
Considerations 

Should interviews be recorded 
and distributed to 
councilmembers once 
interviews for a particular 
commission are complete? 

1. Record the interviews. 
2. Don’t record the 

interviews. 

Once created, recordings are a 
public record. 

Should there be a requirement 
that councilmembers (who 
didn’t participate in 
interviews) listen to a 
recording of interviews for a 
particular commission prior to 
casting votes for members of 
that commission? 

1. Implement a requirement. 
2. Don’t implement a 

requirement. 

The Council Rules would 
need to authorize and require 
recusal rather than abstention 
because abstentions are 
considered votes in favor of 
the motion. 

Should there be a delay 
between the interview date 
and vote date? 

1. Implement a delay (and 
specify the minimum 
length of the delay). 

2. Maintain current practice 
of flexibility. 

A delay would be necessary to 
accommodate a requirement 
that councilmembers listen to 
recordings prior to casting 
votes. 

When should interviews 
occur? 

1. Allow interviews on 
different days of the week 
and times of day when 
committee members are 
available. 

2. Maintain current practice 
of scheduling interviews 
prior to council meetings. 

 

Should the exit interview 
process change to more 
closely match the [entrance] 
interview process? 

1. Have the committee that 
conducts [entrance] 
interviews for a particular 
commission(s) also 
conduct exit interviews for 
that commission(s). 

2. Maintain current practice 
of a single exit interview 
subcommittee. 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  Discussed above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion     X   Other 
 

PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
 
REVIEWED BY:   

82 of 102



RESOLUTION NO. 14-10  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING THE COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL RULES 
OF PROCEDURE TO ADOPT A NEW COMMISSIONER 
INTERVIEW PROCESS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Covington City Council previously passed Resolutions 02-52, 03-136, 
06-25, 08-08, 09-06, 10-05, 13-05, and 14-04 amending its Rules of Procedure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city council deems it necessary to amend said Rules of Procedure to 
adopt a new process for conducting commissioner interviews;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, 
King County, Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 5. CITY ADVISORY COMMITTEES, paragraph “B”, of the 
Covington City Council Rules of Procedure is hereby amended as follows: 
 

B.  Appointment to Advisory Bodies.  Vacancies shall be advertised unless 
otherwise directed by the City Council so that any interested citizen may submit 
an application.  Applicants are urged to be citizens of the City of Covington, but 
applications from residents living outside of the corporate boundaries may be 
considered if authorized by the resolution or ordinance establishing the advisory 
body. 
 
For each advisory body the City Council shall annually appoint a subcommittee of 
three or fewer Council members to conduct applicant interviews for that 
respective advisory body. Each Council member shall be appointed to at least one 
said subcommittee. Each advisory body applicant interview subcommittee shall 
interview applicants for reappointment to that advisory body unless otherwise 
determined by the City Council. Every effort shall be made to interview each 
applicant, except when an applicant lacks the basic qualifications as set forth in 
the applicable resolution or ordinance or when the gross number of applicants is 
so large as to be an undue burden on the respective subcommittee’s schedule.  
 
The City Clerk shall endeavor to schedule applicant interviews at a time and date 
that best meets the scheduling needs of each respective subcommittee. All 
applicant interviews conducted by the subcommittees shall be recorded and made 
available to the City Council. The City Clerk shall endeavor to provide a 
sufficient amount of time for all Council members to review the applicable 
applicant interview recordings before the City Council discusses and appoints 
commissioners at a regular City Council meeting.  
 

ATTACHMENT 2

83 of 102



Appointments to advisory bodies will be made by the City Council during a 
regularly scheduled meeting. Newly appointed members will receive a briefing by 
the applicable Commission, Committee, or Task Force Chairperson and/or City 
staff regarding the duties and responsibilities of the members of their respective 
advisory body. 

 
 
 PASSED in open and regular session on this 13th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                  MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

84 of 102



Agenda Item 5  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 13, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  2014 FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2014 First Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Comparison   
4. Current Investment Listing 

 
PREPARED BY:   
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   ___X__Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

85 of 102



ATTACHMENT 1

86 of 102



87 of 102



88 of 102



89 of 102



90 of 102



91 of 102



92 of 102



ATTACHMENT 2

93 of 102



94 of 102



95 of 102



96 of 102



97 of 102



ATTACHMENT 3

98 of 102



ATTACHMENT 4

99 of 102



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: May 13, 2014  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

 
7:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 27, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 
 

 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100 of 102



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, May 27, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 13, 2014 Special Joint Meeting with CEDC & Chamber Board and May 13, 

2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appoint Voting Delegate(s) for Association of Washington Cities Annual Business 

Meeting (Council) 
C-4. 2015-17 CDBG Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (Throm) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  May 8 meeting. 
• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  May 8 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  May 21 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  May 1 meeting; May 15 meeting canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  April 24 and May 22 meetings. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. To Receive Testimony on Proposed 2015-2020 Transportation Improvement Program 

(Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Resolution Adopting Branding Implementation (Slate) 
3. Accept CCP Phase II – 60% Design (Feser) 
4. Discuss Policy Options re Sign Code (Hart) 
5. Approve School Resource Officer Agreement (Klason) 

 

Draft 
as of 05/07/14 

 

101 of 102

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

102 of 102


	05-13-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 13, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 05-13-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 1 04.08.2014 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 3 04.22.2014 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 05-13-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-2 Attachments
	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet Final Blue Sheet_Approval of Contract for 2015 Comp  Plan Update_hart edits-docx
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Item 5 Attachment 1_Draft Contract Studio Cascade 04302014
	Item 5 Attachment 1 Exhibit A_Scope of Services for 2014 Comp Plan Update with studio Cascade
	Exhibit A – Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget
	Scope of Work
	Step 1 – Baseline
	Step 2 – Alternatives
	Step 3 – Draft plan
	Step 4 – Making commitments
	Step 5 – Adoption
	Schedule
	Budget


	Item 1 Blue Sheet Setting 2014 Comp Plan Docket
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1_ CPA_01_14__Park_Dept
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 05-13-14 6 Yr TIP Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachments 1 - 5 05-13-14 6 Yr TIP Attachments 1 - 5
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 05-13-14 Aesthetic Design Elements Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 105-13-14 Aesthetic Design Elements Attachment 1
	Item 4 Attachment 1 Item 3 Blue Sheet 04-08-14 Commission Interview Process
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 4 Attachment 2 05-13-14_Resolution_Amend Council Rules_Commission Interview Process FINAL
	Item 5 Blue Sheet 5_13_14 First Qtr Report
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5 Attachments
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	05-27-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 27, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	05-13-14_Blue Sheet_Council Rules_Commission Interviews FINAL.pdf
	Agenda Item 4




